
 
JOINT PUBLIC WORKS & FINANCE/ PERSONNEL AD HOC COMMITTEE MEETING 

FOLLOWED BY PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MEETING 
Wednesday, April 10th, 2024 at 5:30 PM 
Allouez Village Hall, 1900 Libal Street 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

 
2. MODIFY/ADOPT AGENDA 

 
3. DISCUSSION RE: UTILITY RATE CASE (Finance and DPW) 

a. STORMWATER UTILITY 
b. SANITARY SEWER UTILITY 

 
4. DISCUSSION RE: 2024 BONDING (Finance and DPW) 

 
5. ADJOURNMENT 

 
PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL 

 
2. MODIFY/ADOPT AGENDA 
 
3. APPROVE MINUTES from the March 13th, 2024 meeting 

 
4. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
5. PUBLIC APPEARANCES 

 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 

6. ACTION RE: UTILITY RATE CASE (DPW) 
a. STORMWATER UTILITY 
b. SANITARY SEWER UTILITY 

 
DISCUSSION/REPORT:   
 

7. DISCUSSION RE: 2023 MS4 STORMWATER ANNUAL REPORT TO WDNR (DPW Gehin) 
 

8. DISCUSSION RE: 2024 STREET AND UTILITY CONSTRUCTION PROJECT UPDATE (DPW 
Gehin) 
 

9.  ADJOURNMENT  
 
 

 
NOTE:  It is possible that members of and a possible quorum of members of other governmental 
bodies of the municipality may be in attendance at the above noticed meeting to gather 
information; no action will be taken by any governmental body at the above noticed meeting other 
than the governmental body specifically referred to above in this notice. 



2024 Allouez Storm Water Utility Rate Study 

 
 

BACKGROUND 
The Village of Allouez established a Storm Water Utility Ordinance in September 2003.   The 
utility accounts for all storm water capital improvements, operations, maintenance, and 
any other costs of meeting federal and state storm water management mandates.  Prior to 
the creation of the utility, storm water costs were accounted for in the general fund and 
supported by the property tax levy which resulted in tax-exempt properties benefiting from 
storm water management practices without sharing in the costs of providing these 
services. 

ERUs 
Storm water utility charges are calculated using the Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) 
methodology.  Under this method, a single ERU is based on the impervious surface area of 
a typical single-family home.  (The impervious surface includes rooftops, patios, porches, 
driveways, and sidewalks.)   For Allouez, the average square footage of one ERU is 3,663 
square feet.  All single-family residential parcels are charged one ERU per month.   With 
some exceptions (including duplexes), the number of ERUs charged to non-single-family 
residential properties varies based on the impervious surface of the parcel.  The number of 
ERUs charged is determined by dividing the parcel’s impervious surface area in square feet 
by 3,663 square feet. 

RATE INCREASE 
The last storm water utility rate increase was implemented in 2015.  Before another 
increase in the ERU rate, public works determined that all impervious surfaces of the 
Village be reviewed with the belief that additional revenues would be captured.  These 
revenues were reflected in the 2021 and 2022 storm water utility budgets, but there was 
only a slight increase in actual ERUs charged.  The lack of a recent increase in the ERU rate, 
coupled with the rising cost to operate and maintain the Village’s storm water system, has 
resulted in a negative cash balance in the utility and need to increase the rate.   

The 2024 storm water utility budget results in an ERU of $9.75 to support operating 
expenses and debt service without considering the negative cash balance of the utility.  
While various rate scenarios were considered, to offset the negative cash and mitigate the 
impact of increased storm water charges to the property owners, it is recommended that a 
portion of American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) grant funds be used along with an increase in 
the ERU rate.  At the March 25, 2024, meeting of the Finance/Personnel Ad Hoc Committee, 
the consensus was to recommend that $200,000 in ARPA funds be provided to the storm 
water utility as well as increasing the ERU from $7.50 to $10.50 with an additional increase 
in the ERU in couple of years.  



Village of Allouez - Storm Water Utility 

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

OPERATING REVENUES
User Charges 672,226$           823,065$           934,290$          1,023,270$       1,023,270$       1,023,270$       
Storm Water Lateral Inspections 1,900                 1,500                 500                   500                   500                   500                   
Storm Water Management Site Reviews -                    2,000                 1,000                1,000                1,000                1,000                
Erosion Control Reviews 450                    1,000                 500                   500                   500                   500                   
Fee in Lieu of Treatment Charges -                    1,000                 500                   500                   500                   500                   

Total Operating Revenues 674,576             828,565             936,790            1,025,770         1,025,770         1,025,770         

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and Maintenance

Engineering 72,516               80,082               82,484              84,959              87,508              90,133              
Public Works Administration 40,747               42,871               44,157              45,482              46,846              48,252              
Street Cleaning 77,214               92,945               95,733              98,605              101,564            104,610            
Storm Sewer 188,411             201,595             207,643            213,872            220,288            226,897            
Storm Lateral Locates/Inspections 13,833               8,525                 8,781                9,044                9,315                9,595                
Storm Water Treatment 20,903               15,000               15,450              15,914              16,391              16,883              
Leaf Collection 8,562                 4,680                 4,820                4,965                5,114                5,267                
LeBrun Road/Farm 1,800                 -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   
Total Operation and Maintenance 423,986             445,698             459,069            472,841            487,026            501,637            

Depreciation 239,688             243,000             250,290            257,799            265,533            273,499            
Total Operating Expenses 663,674             688,698             709,359            730,640            752,559            775,136            

OPERATING INCOME 10,902               139,867             227,431            295,130            273,211            250,634            

CASH FLOW ADJUSTMENTS
Depreciation 239,688             243,000             250,290            257,799            265,533            273,499            
Debt Service (422,694)            (419,381)            (358,827)           (366,756)           (364,007)           (322,035)           
Total Cash Flow Adjustments (183,006)            (176,381)            (108,537)           (108,957)           (98,474)             (48,536)             

PROJECTED CASH FLOW (172,104)            (36,514)              118,894            186,173            174,737            202,098            

ESTIMATED CASH BALANCES
Cash - Beginning of Year (126,625)$          (300,838)$          (137,352)$         (18,458)$           117,715$          242,452$          
Projected Cash Flow Activity (172,104)            (36,514)              118,894            186,173            174,737            202,098            
ARPA Proceeds to Offset Negative Cash Balance -                        200,000             -                       -                       -                       -                       
Debt Service Allowance -                        -                        -                       (50,000)             (50,000)             (50,000)             
Cash - End of Year (298,729)$          (137,352)$          (18,458)$           117,715$          242,452$          394,550$          

Rate per ERU (based on 7,415 total ERUs) 7.50$                 10.50$               10.50$              11.50$              11.50$              11.50$              

Projected ERU User Charges 823,065$           934,290$          1,023,270$       1,023,270$       1,023,270$       

Increase in rate per ERU 3.00$                
Increase in annual user fees per ERU 36.00$              
Projected 2024 increase - implement w/June usage billed July 21.00$              

Projected



STORM WATER COMPARISON
April 5, 2024

Municipality ERU Rate Annual ERU Rate
1 ERU = x SF of 

Impervious Surface Total ERUs Billed
# of Municipal 

Owned/Constructed Ponds
Special Assessments for Pond 
Construction? Municipal Street Sweeping Program?

Allouez - current $7.50 billed monthly $90.00 3,663 SF 7,447 7 No
Yes- Biweekly sweeping from April through 
October. 15 passes through village annually.

Allouez - proposed $10.50 billed monthly $126.00 3,663 SF 7,447 7 No
Yes- Biweekly sweeping from April through 
October. 15 passes through village annually.

Ashwaubenon $12.50 billed quarterly $50.00 3,316 SF 28,000 14 No
Yes- Daily sweeping from April through 
October. 7 passes through village annually.

Bellevue $6.00 billed monthly $72.00 3,221 SF 13,932.6 42* No Yes- Three seasons of sweeping.

De Pere $122.00 billed annually $122.00 3,861 SF 20,388 54
Only if built for new development (new 
subdivision)

Yes- Three seasons of sweeping. Goal of 10 
passes through city annually.

Howard $6.90 billed monthly $82.80 3,301 SF not available not available not available not available

Ledgeview $110.00 billed annually $110.00 4,940 SF 4,987 70** Yes- mostly developer cost No- Sweeping completed 3x per year 

Suamico $40.00 billed annually $40.00 5,137 SF not available 35 No
No- Sweeping completed 1x per year by 
contracted service. 

* The Village of Bellevue has constructed 8 regional ponds. There are a total of 42 ponds owned (developer built, then turned over) or maintained by Bellevue.
** The Village of Ledgeview has 70 total ponds, 16 are private that Ledgeview has agreements on.



   
 

 

2024 Allouez Sanitary Sewer Utility Rate Study 

 

A. BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE 

Background – The Village of Allouez Sewer Utility (Utility) furnishes sanitary sewer service to over 
5,500 customers. It is responsible for the capital cost and the operation and maintenance cost and 
activities involving the sanitary sewer collection system and lift stations that transport wastewater 
from the Village collector system to the interceptor sewers owned and maintained by Northeast 
Wisconsin (NEW) Water – Green Bay Metropolitan Sewerage District. The wastewater is treated at 
NEW Water’s regional wastewater treatment facility.  

Purpose – The purpose of this study is to review and either confirm or recommend changes to the 
Village’s sewer rates. This report and the accompanying schedules describe the Utility’s 2024 
revenue requirement and proposed sewer rates. Overall revenue from sewer rates needs to 
increase by $150,000 or 4.8 percent of revenue at present rates. The Village’s sewer rates were last 
revised in 2022. The two drivers of the proposed rate increase are 1) decreased revenues from lower 
volume and 2) Operation and maintenance (O&M) expense increases, which are in turn driven by 
increases in costs from NEW Water.  

 

B. KEY FINDINGS 

Revenue Requirement and Projected Rates – This study proposes fixed and volume rate changes 
based on revenue and cash-flow needs projected in the 2024 Village budget process. The sewer 
cost of service study is newly designed to provide a simple model that can easily be updated. It 
maintains historical rate practices. 

Costs of Treatment Have Changed – The overall 2024 O&M budget for sanitary sewer operations is 
just over $2.9 million. Most of this cost is for treatment at NEW Water, which is budgeted at almost 
$2.2 million in 2024. The remaining expense represents the cost of operating the Utility’s sewer 
collection system.  

Sewer Rate Structure – The Village has an established rate structure that is widely considered fair 
and equitable and that allocates appropriate costs to customers. No changes are being proposed 
to the rate structure format.  

Impacts on Customer Bills – The proposed rate increase would raise fixed meter charges by 
approximately 4.2 percent for most customers and volume charges by approximately 5.4 percent. 
The proposed increase would affect customers in a uniform way.  A comparison of individual 
customer impacts can be seen later in the study in Table 5.  

 

C. RATE STUDY 

The Village of Allouez (Village) has seen increased expenses since its last rate update in 2022, and 
its budget projects a significant cash flow shortfall, resulting in a forecast negative cash balance for 



2024 Allouez Sanitary Sewer Utility Rate Study 
February 26, 2024 

 

2 
 

the sanitary sewer utility fund by the end of 2024. This study proposes a rate increase in 2024 to 
help it to achieve a sustainable financial position.  

Table 1 below shows the budgeted income and cash flow for 2024. The utility is forecast to lose 
almost $100,000 in cash this year if there is no rate increase. The red amount shows the proposed 
revenue increase from rates. This increase would allow the utility to fully fund its activities and 
begin building a more adequate cash reserve. 

The American Water Works Association (AWWA) provides guidance for utilities for cash balances. 
Although the AWWA does not offer a one-size-fits-all cash-reserve number for all utilities, it does 
list a full year’s worth of operating expenses as a suitable general target.1  

Ruekert & Mielke (R/M) recommends a more modest target for the Village of 10 percent or more of 
its annual operation and maintenance (O&M) expenses. Because the Village does not maintain its 
own wastewater treatment facility, the Village does not need as large of a cash balance as other 
utilities. However, the Village should increase the cash balance in its sanitary sewer utility fund for 
other needs, such as emergency main replacements, unexpected shortfalls in revenue, and any 
other unforeseen issues. The proposed increase would enable the Village to achieve this 
recommended target cash balance.  

 

 
1 “Cash Reserve Policy Guidelines”. American Water Works Association. 2018. 
https://www.awwa.org/Portals/0/AWWA/ETS/Resources/awwacashreservepolicynew.pdf. Accessed January 18, 2024. 

Revenue Cash Balance as of Jan 1, 2024 300,000$  
  Sewerage Service Charges 3,100,000$        
  Other 1,000                  Operating Income (Loss) 197,673    
  Subtotal 3,101,000          Depreciation 240,000    

Interest Income 15,000      
Operations & Maintenance Expenses Debt Service (533,750)   
  NEW Water Fixed Charge 949,804             Transfer to Equipment Reserve (15,000)     
  NEW Water Flow and Other Charges 1,222,853          Cash Flow (96,077)    
  Depreciation 240,000             
  Other O&M 490,670             Cash Balance as of Jan 1, 2025 203,923$  
  Subtotal 2,903,327          

Increased Income/Cash from Rate Change 150,000$ 
Operating Income (Loss) 197,673            

Projected Income (Loss) 269,841$ 
Other Revenue (Expenses) Projected Cash Flow 53,923$   
  Amortization of Premium on Debt 21,312               Projected Cash Balance as of Jan 1, 2025 353,923$ 
  Interest on Long-term Debt (114,144)            
  Interest Income 15,000               
  Subtotal (77,832)              Cash Flow as % of Annual O&M 2%

Income (Loss) 119,841$          Cash Balance as % of Annual O&M 12%

Table 1

Revenue Requirement

Income Cash

https://www.awwa.org/Portals/0/AWWA/ETS/Resources/awwacashreservepolicynew.pdf


2024 Allouez Sanitary Sewer Utility Rate Study 
February 26, 2024 

 

3 
 

 

The revenue target is the sum of the budgeted sewer service charges ($3.1 million) and the 
increased income from the rate change ($150,000), which is $3.25 million.  

The following table allocates the $3.25 million between fixed and variable charges. Like the prior 
rate study, it includes an adjustment that moves a portion of the fixed costs to the volume charges. 
The prior study moved 25 percent from volume to fixed charges; this study proposes to move 35 
percent. This adjustment is to avoid a large increase in fixed charges and to provide customers with 
more control over their bills, to the extent that they can lower their volume.  

 

The following table shows how the fixed costs from Table 2 are allocated among customers based 
on meter sizes. This study uses the same meter-equivalency factors as the prior study except for 
the 6-inch equivalency. Meter-equivalency factors account for the fact that customers with larger 
meters impose more costs on the sanitary system than customers with smaller meters. The 6-inch 
equivalency was raised from 45 to 60 to reflect that this meter size has a significantly higher 
capacity than smaller meters. Since fixed charges are intended to recover system sizing costs, 
using an equivalency that more closely matches the meter capacity provides a more accurate basis 
for the fixed charge for a meter of this size. The other meter sizes already have equivalencies that 
have an appropriate relationship for their capacities relative to a three-quarter-inch meter, so they 
were not changed.  

The number of meters at each meter size is multiplied by the appropriate meter equivalency factor, 
and then each product is added together to yield the total meter equivalencies, which is 6,455. The 
fixed costs are divided by the total number of meter equivalencies, which yields the annual fixed 
charge per meter equivalent. This charge is divided by 12 and is then multiplied by the appropriate 
meter equivalency factor to yield the bolded proposed monthly fixed charges below.  

Adjustment (Fixed Portion Moved to Variable) = 35%

Fixed Unadjusted Adjustment Adjusted
  NEW Water Charge 949,804$           (332,431)$              617,373$     
  Debt Service 533,750             (186,813)                346,938       
  Subtotal Fixed 1,483,554         (519,244)               964,310      

  Variable 1,766,446         519,244                2,285,690   

Total Cost 3,250,000$       3,250,000$ 

Table 2

Fixed and Variable Costs



2024 Allouez Sanitary Sewer Utility Rate Study 
February 26, 2024 

 

4 
 

 

Fixed Costs = $964,310

Meter Size Meter Count
Meter Equivalency 

Factor Meter Equivalencies
3/4" 5,376                            1.0 5,376.0                        

1" 83                                  2.5 207.5                           
1 1/2" 54                                  5.0 270.0                           

2" 32                                  8.0 256.0                           
3" 13                                  15.0 195.0                           
4" 1                                    30.0 30.0                              
6" 2                                    60.0 120.0                           

Total 5,561                            6,455                           

Annual Fixed Charge / Meter Equivalent = 149.41$                       
Monthly Fixed Charge / Meter Equivalent = 12.50$                         

Meter Size Proposed Current Change
3/4" 12.50$                         12.00$                          0.50$                            

1" 31.25$                         30.00$                          1.25$                            
1 1/2" 62.50$                         60.00$                          2.50$                            

2" 100.00$                       96.00$                          4.00$                            
3" 187.50$                       180.00$                       7.50$                            
4" 375.00$                       360.00$                       15.00$                          
6" 750.00$                       540.00$                       210.00$                       

% Change = 4.2%

Meter Size Meter Count Monthly Annual
3/4" 5,376                            67,200$                        806,400$                     

1" 83                                  2,594$                          31,125$                        
1 1/2" 54                                  3,375$                          40,500$                        

2" 32                                  3,200$                          38,400$                        
3" 13                                  2,438$                          29,250$                        
4" 1                                    375$                             4,500$                          
6" 2                                    1,500$                          18,000$                        

Total 5,561                           80,681$                       968,175$                     

Table 3

Fixed Charges

Revenue from Proposed Meter Charges

Monthly Fixed Charges



2024 Allouez Sanitary Sewer Utility Rate Study 
February 26, 2024 

 

5 
 

The table below shows the proposed volume charges based on the variable costs from Table 2 
divided by the forecast metered water demand of 285 million gallons. The prior rate case used 300 
million gallons. The amount was reduced due to Green Bay Correctional Institute’s efforts to reduce 
its water use, efforts that have led to a significant decline in its consumption. 

 

 

The table below shows the impact the proposed charges would have on customers who have 
different meter sizes and consumption.  

 

Variable Cost 2,285,690$              

Estimated Volume (gallons) 285,000,000            

Rate per Thousand Gallons
Proposed 8.02$                        
Current 7.59$                        

Change 0.43$                        
Change 5.4%

Table 4

Volume Charges



2024 Allouez Sanitary Sewer Utility Rate Study 
February 26, 2024 

 

6 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Customer Type
Meter 

Size
Demand (100s 

of Gallons)
Bill with Current 

Rates
Bill with 

Proposed Rates
Residential Rates

No Consumption 3/4" -                       12.00$                12.50$                0.50$     4%

Small Residential 3/4" 15                        23.39$                24.53$                1.15$     5%

Average Residential 3/4" 30                        34.77$                36.56$                1.79$     5%

Large Residential 3/4" 50                        49.95$                52.60$                2.65$     5%

Large Residential 3/4" 80                        72.72$                76.66$                3.94$     5%

Large Residential 3/4" 100                      87.90$                92.70$                4.80$     5%

No Consumption 1" -                       30.00$                31.25$                1.25$     4%

Small Residential 1" 15                        41.39$                43.28$                1.90$     5%

Average Residential 1" 30                        52.77$                55.31$                2.54$     5%

Large Residential 1" 50                        67.95$                71.35$                3.40$     5%

Large Residential 1" 80                        90.72$                95.41$                4.69$     5%

Large Residential 1" 100                      105.90$             111.45$             5.55$     5%

Increase

Table 5

Customer Bill Analysis



2024 Allouez Sanitary Sewer Utility Rate Study 
February 26, 2024 

 

7 
 

 

 

 

 

 

D. FIVE-YEAR FORECAST 

The next two tables forecast the next 5 years. Each table shares several assumptions, including 
annual inflationary increases to expenses and annual increases to rates. They incorporate the 
Village’s planned capital improvements and assume the Village bonds for these projects for a 20-
year term at an interest rate of 4 percent.  

The forecasts also assume that NEW Water will increase its rate by 7 percent each year; this crucial 
assumption is based on NEW Water’s own assessment of how much its facilities upgrades will 
cost. This increase from NEW Water drives the recommended increases for the Village’s rates to its 
customers.  

Customer Type
Meter 

Size
Demand (100s 

of Gallons)
Bill with Current 

Rates
Bill with 

Proposed Rates
Non-Residential Rates

Multi-family 2" 400                      399.60$             420.80$             21.20$       5%

Multi-family 2" 450                      437.55$             460.90$             23.35$       5%

Multi-family 2" 450                      437.55$             460.90$             23.35$       5%

Commercial 1 1/2" 125                      154.88$             162.75$             7.88$         5%

Commercial 1 1/2" 175                      192.83$             202.85$             10.03$       5%

Commercial 2" 250                      285.75$             300.50$             14.75$       5%

Commercial 3" 300                      407.70$             428.10$             20.40$       5%

Public Authority 2" 500                      475.50$             501.00$             25.50$       5%

Public Authority 3" 500                      559.50$             588.50$             29.00$       5%

Public Authority 6" 25,000                 19,515.00$        20,800.00$        1,285.00$ 7%

Increase

Table 5 (continued)

Customer Bill Analysis



2024 Allouez Sanitary Sewer Utility Rate Study 
February 26, 2024 

 

8 
 

Both tables set a cash-reserve target of 10 percent of annual O&M for the entire forecast period. 
The only difference between the two tables is how often the Village raises sewer rates. The first 
table assumes that the Village raises rates every year. This approach would allow the Village to keep 
pace with the increases in charges from NEW Water with more modest rate increases. The 
downside is that citizens, businesses, and institutions would see increases every year. See below.  

 

The next table shows what rate increases would be needed if the Village only raised rates every 
other year. While doing so would give customers a break from increases in the off years, it would 
require the Village to raise rates more steeply.  

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

Rate Increase 5% 4% 4% 4% 5%

Revenue 3,251,000$        3,381,040$   3,516,282$   3,656,933$      3,839,780$      

NEW Water Fixed Charge 949,804             1,016,290      1,087,431     1,163,551        1,244,999        
NEW Water Flow and Other Charges 1,222,853          1,308,453      1,400,044     1,498,048        1,602,911        
Depreciation 240,000             247,200         254,616         262,254           270,122           
Other O&M 490,670             505,390         520,552         536,168           552,253           
Subtotal Expenses 2,903,327          3,077,333      3,262,643     3,460,021        3,670,286        

Operating Income (Loss) 347,673             303,707        253,639        196,912          169,494          

Cash Adjustments
Depreciation 240,000             247,200         254,616         262,254           270,122           
Interest Income 15,000                15,000           15,000           15,000             15,000             
Debt Service (533,750)            (510,572)        (431,916)       (497,584)          (487,474)          
Transfer to Equipment Reserve (15,000)              (15,000)          (15,000)          (15,000)            (15,000)            

Cash Flow 53,923$             40,335$        76,339$        (38,418)$         (47,857)$         

End-of-year Cash Balance 353,923$          394,258$      470,598$      432,180$        384,323$        

Cash Reserve as % O&M 12% 13% 14% 12% 10%

NOTES:
Debt service includes existing debt and projected debt to pay for planned capital improvements

Table 6A -- Increases Every Year

5 Year Forecast



2024 Allouez Sanitary Sewer Utility Rate Study 
February 26, 2024 

 

9 
 

 

Regardless of which route the Village chooses, the planned annual increases from NEW Water will 
require regular rate increases for the sanitary sewer utility to stay solvent. 

Expenses and/or revenues may differ significantly from the forecast. The Village should revisit this 
forecast each year and adjust its planning as needed.  

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

Rate Increase 5% 0% 11% 0% 10%

Revenue 3,251,000$        3,251,000$   3,608,610$   3,608,610$      3,969,471$      

NEW Water Fixed Charge 949,804             1,016,290      1,087,431     1,163,551        1,244,999        
NEW Water Flow and Other Charges 1,222,853          1,308,453      1,400,044     1,498,048        1,602,911        
Depreciation 240,000             247,200         254,616         262,254           270,122           
Other O&M 490,670             505,390         520,552         536,168           552,253           
Subtotal Expenses 2,903,327          3,077,333      3,262,643     3,460,021        3,670,286        

Operating Income (Loss) 347,673             173,667        345,967        148,589          299,185          

Cash Adjustments
Depreciation 240,000             247,200         254,616         262,254           270,122           
Interest Income 15,000                15,000           15,000           15,000             15,000             
Debt Service (533,750)            (510,572)        (431,916)       (497,584)          (487,474)          
Transfer to Equipment Reserve (15,000)              (15,000)          (15,000)          (15,000)            (15,000)            

Cash Flow 53,923$             (89,705)$       168,668$      (86,741)$         81,834$          

End-of-year Cash Balance 353,923$          264,218$      432,886$      346,146$        427,980$        

Cash Reserve as % O&M 12% 9% 13% 10% 12%

NOTES:
Debt service includes existing debt and projected debt to pay for planned capital improvements

Table 6B -- Increases Every Second Year

5 Year Forecast



Village of Allouez
DRAFT 2024 Bonding
Project Description Street/Sidewalk Sanitary Sewer Watermains Storm Sewer Parks Total Comments

--- --- --- --- ---
AL-2024-02 Sanitary Sewer Lining Project
Brenner Place --- 39,339.00$           --- --- --- 39,339$                 Based on 01/16/2024 Bid Opening
Libal Street --- 64,890.50$           --- --- --- 64,891$                 
Webster Avenue --- 5,800$                   --- --- --- 5,800$                   
Contingency 5% --- 5,501$                   --- --- --- 5,501$                   
Street Supplemental Items --- 7,500$                   --- --- --- 7,500$                   Contract Base Bid Amount 

AL-2024-03 Libal Street Utility Improvement Project 
Engineering Expenses
Misc. Expenses --- 250$                      250$                      --- --- 500$                      Permit Fees and Printing
Construction Material Testing --- 2,000$                   2,000$                   --- --- 4,000$                   AET
Construction Services (Inspection and Staking) --- 30,000$                 30,000$                 --- --- 60,000$                 520 hrs*$96/hr=$49,920 + Const Staking $5,000
Record Survey and Drawing --- --- --- --- --- -$                       To Be Completed in House

Construction Expenses
Libal Street -- Simonet St. to Beaupre St. --- 381,851$               175,949$               --- --- 557,800$               Based on 02/06/2024 Bid Opening
Contingency 5% --- 19,093$                 8,797$                   --- --- 27,890$                 
Street Supplemental Items --- --- 10,600.00$           --- --- 10,600$                 
 Private Sanitary Lateral Replacement --- 157,640$               --- --- --- 157,640$               
Reimbursement of Private Sanitary Lateral Replacement --- (157,640)$             --- --- --- (157,640)$             

4517-06-71 Libal Street Improvement Project
Participating Cost Street 70% and Storm 30% of Overall Cost
Strand Associates - Utility Coordination 2,800$                   --- --- 1,200$                   --- 4,000$                   Utility Coordination $4000
Construction Management (Graef) 337,464$               --- --- 144,627$               --- 482,091$               Per SMA - $482,091
Construction Cost 2,743,234$           --- --- 1,006,263$           --- 3,749,497$           Bid Const. Cost - $3,749,496.90
Contingency 5% 137,162$               --- --- 50,313$                 --- 187,475$               5% Contingency
80% Federal Reimbursement Not to Exceed (2,474,675)$          --- --- (1,060,575)$          --- (3,535,250)$          Federal Funding is limited to $3,743,428

Non-Participating Cost
Wayfinding Signage and Maintaining Mail Service 10,517.00$           --- --- --- --- 10,517.00$           
Adjusting Water Valves --- --- 3,441.00$              --- --- 3,441$                   
Adjusting Manholes and Inlet Covers --- 9,900.00$              --- --- --- 9,900$                   Cost of Non-Participating Items =
Storm Lateral PVC 6-Inch --- --- --- 171,430.00$         --- 171,430$               
Salvage Landscaping Brick 2,738.00$              --- --- --- --- 2,738$                   Total Estimated Project Cost =
Storm Lateral Assessment --- --- --- (24,862)$               --- (24,862)$               401ft*$62/ft = $24,862
Removal of Blvd Trees 6,195$                   --- --- --- --- 6,195$                   Removal of Blvd Trees
Planting of Blvd Trees 6,000$                   --- --- --- --- 6,000$                   

AL-2025-01 Street and Utility Reconstruct Engineering
St. Francis Dr., Park Dr., Cresent Dr., Regina St., and Greene Ave Street 37%, Sanitary Sewer 19%, Watermain 27%, Storm Sewer 17%
Soils Investigation 2,590.00$              1,330.00$              1,890.00$              1,190.00$              --- 7,000$                   
Televising --- 7,500.00$              --- 2,500.00$              --- 10,000$                 
Survey & Engineering 59,200.00$           30,400.00$           43,200.00$           27,200.00$           --- 160,000$               $4,000,000*1.04(Engineering Fees)=$160,0000

Riverview Pond Project - Engineering 
 Conceptual Layouts and Meetings --- --- --- 15,000.00$           --- 15,000$                 
Survey and Engineering --- --- --- 60,000.00$           --- 60,000$                 
DNR Permiting and Fee --- --- --- 15,000.00$           --- 15,000$                 

Vande Hei Rd Reservior Roof Replacement Replacement 
Engineering, Meetings, Plans and Specs --- --- 47,500.00$           --- --- 47,500.00$           
DNR Permitting --- --- 5,000.00$              --- --- 5,000.00$              
Construction Inspection --- --- 15,000.00$           --- --- 15,000$                 67,500.00$                                                                                                                                   

Construction 
Reservoir Manway Repair --- --- 30,000.00$           --- --- 30,000$                 
Rectangular Reservoir Roof --- --- 225,000.00$         --- --- 225,000$               
Round Reservoir Roof --- --- 114,000.00$         --- --- 114,000$               
Overflow Modifications --- --- 20,000.00$           --- --- 20,000$                 
20% Contingency --- --- 77,800.00$           --- --- 77,800$                 466,800$                                                                                                                                      

SCADA System Upgrade and Update
PJKco Proposal --- --- 53,625.00$           --- --- 53,625$                 

Public Works Department Equipment Purchases
2024 Peterbilt/Labrie Garbage Truck 345,000.00$         --- --- --- --- 345,000.00$         $365,000 Purchase Price - $20,000 Est. Action Price
2024 Peterbilt/Labrie Garbage Truck 345,000.00$         --- --- --- --- 345,000.00$         $365,000 Purchase Price - $20,000 Est. Action Price
2024 Volvo Frontend Loader 185,000.00$         --- --- --- --- 185,000.00$         $226,000 Purchase Price - $42,000 Trade In
Trackless Sidewalk Tractor 153,000.00$         --- --- --- --- 153,000.00$         $168,000 Purchase Price - $15,000 Est. Action Price

Parks Department Equipment Purchases
Tractor --- --- --- --- 105,000.00$         105,000.00$         
16' Mower --- --- --- --- 168,500.00$         168,500.00$         

Parks Dept - Webster Park Parking Lot Addition
Engineering, Plans and Specs --- --- --- --- --- ---
Bid and Advertising --- --- --- --- --- ---
Construction Cost --- --- --- --- 250,000.00$         250,000$               
15% Contingency --- --- --- --- --- ---

1,861,224$           605,355$               864,052$               409,286$               523,500$               4,263,418$           
LESS:  2023 BOND PROCEEDS TO BE APPLIED 2025 -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       

1,861,224$           605,355$               864,052$               409,286$               523,500$               4,263,418$           



PUBLIC WORK’S COMMITTEE MEETING Minutes 
Wednesday, March 13th, 2024 
5:30 P.M., Allouez Village Hall 
 
Present: Beyler, Genrich, Lefebvre, Green 
Also present: Gehin, Lange 
Excused: Collison  
 
CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL 
Genrich called the meeting to order at 5:30pm. 

 
MODIFY/ADOPT AGENDA 
Lefebvre/Beyler moved to adopt the agenda as presented. Motion carried.  

 
APPROVE MINUTES from the February 14th, 2024 meeting 
Beyler/Green moved to approve the February 14, 2024 minutes as presented. Motion 
carried. 

 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
S. Gehin: 

- Notice of Special Assessment Hearing on March 19th at 6:30 p.m. 
- April 10th- Joint Personnel Finance and Public Works Committee Meeting to Review Utility 

Rate Cases 
 
PUBLIC APPEARANCES 
- None 

 
COMMUNICATIONS AND PUBLIC OUTREACH AGREEMENT  
B. Lange: 

- Shared the proposal from Leonard and Finco to assist the village with the communication of 
the Libal Street construction project to those directly impacted and the general public.  The 
proposal is for 6 months and a cost up to $37,500.  

 
Green/Lefebvre moved to recommend to the Village Board the proposal from Leonard and 
Finco at a price not to exceed $37,500. Motion carried. 

 
LIBAL STREET IMPROVEMENT PROJECT UPDATE  

 
a.  UTILITY INSPECTION AND STAKING SERVICES 
S. Gehin:    
- The Village of Allouez Public Works Department had requested proposals from three 

engineering consultants for assistance with the construction inspection (1 full time 
inspector) and staking of the proposed Libal St. Utility improvements.   

- Work on this project began the week of March 4th and is anticipated to be completed 
middle to end of May. 

- The scope of construction services consists of providing field construction observation, 
construction staking and assistance with the preparation of the record drawings. 

- The estimated cost for the inspection and staking services was estimated at $55,000 and 
the Village Board has already approved this contract. 
 



b.  STREET AND UTILITY CONSTRUCTION PROJECT UPDATE 
S. Gehin: 
- Utility Improvement Project 

o Under Village contract, work began the week of March 4th and is anticipated to 
be completed middle to end of May. 

o The utility improvements include the replacement and lining of various 
segments of the existing sanitary sewer, replacement of existing water and 
sanitary sewer laterals from the main to the property line (STH 172 to Allouez 
Ave.), spot repair of sanitary sewer manholes, and relocation of existing fire 
hydrants. 

- Street Improvement Project 
o Under State contract, work to begin middle of May and be completed early in 

October.   
o In general, the scope of work includes the reconstruction of Libal St. from STH 

172 to Allouez Ave. and the resurfacing of Libal St. from Allouez Ave. to Kalb Ave.  
The roundabout at Allouez Ave. will be gapped and is not part of this project. 

 
ATC REBUILD PROJECT  
S. Gehin:  

- ATC who owns, operates, and maintains the regional electric grid will be making 
improvements to their current poles and overhead electric lines.  

- The overhead lines cross the East River near Hoffman Road and run through the back yards 
for those along Sunrise Ln., Fairview Ave. and Roselawn Blvd. to the Fox River Trail. 

- The schedule for the work is as follows: 
o Survey, Engineering and Environmental Reporting – 2024 
o Construction – 2025 
o Restoration -2026 

- ATC Representatives to provide a presentation to the Village Board on March 19th.   
 

ADJOURNMENT  
Beyler/Lefebvre moved to adjourn at 5:58p.m. Motion carried. 
 
 
Minutes submitted by Brad Lange and Sean Gehin. 
 
 



VILLAGE  OF  ALLOUEZ 
Allouez Village Hall   ◦   1900 Libal Street   ◦   Green Bay, Wisconsin  54301-2453 

Phone No.:  (920) 448-2800   ◦   Fax No.:  (920) 448-2850 
 

Department of Public Works 
04/05/24 

 
2023 ANNUAL STORMWATER REPORT 
 
The Village owns, operates and maintains a municipal storm sewer system.  Pursuant to DNR administrative 
rules, an owner or operator of a Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) is required to submit an annual 
report to the DNR on stormwater activities completed during the previous year.  The submitted 2023 Annual 
Stormwater Report is attached for your review.   
 
Those activities or permit condition include: 

1. Public Education and Outreach Activities 
2. Public Involvement and Participation 
3. Illicit Discharge Detection 
4. Construction Site Pollutant Control 
5. Post-construction Stormwater Management 
6. Pollution Prevention 
7. Stormwater Quality Management 
8. Storm Sewer System Mapping 
9. Submittal of Annual Report  

 
Some of the notable activities completed by the Village in 2023 include: 

• All About Allouez booklet, Village webpage and partnership with the Northeast Wisconsin Stormwater 
Consortium (NEWSC) were utilized to inform and educate the general public on a number of 
stormwater related topics. 

• Hired McMahon Associates to inspect a portion of the Village’s storm sewer outfalls for illicit 
discharges (any substance discharged into our storm sewer other than clear water.)  17 storm outfalls 
were inspected in 2023. 

• Village owns eight regional ponds helping Village meet DNR water quality and quantity requirements. 
• Village ponds are inspected on a bi-monthly basis by Street Dept. staff April thru October. 
• Village streets were swept 15 times (April thru Mid-November) in 2023 removing 160 tons of material.  
• Fall clean-up (7 round trips) 
• Village began the planning for the construction of the Riverview Pond of which numerous public 

meetings were held and a lot of good comments/feedback was received.  
• 55-miles of roadway; due to abnormal winter weather, salt usage was limited to 260 tons.  Equipment 

was properly calibrated. 
• With help from a Consultant, the Village is working to update the Village’s storm sewer mapping.   

 
Sean J. Gehin, P.E. 
Director of Public Works      

 
      
 






































	Joint PW and Finance Meeting April 10th 2024
	2024 Allouez Storm Water Utility Rate Study
	ERU Neighbors
	Sheet1

	STORM RATE 2024
	Joint Meeting DPW-FInance

	2024 Allouez Sanitary Sewer Utility Rate Study -- Final
	2024 Village Project Bonding
	2024 Bonding Projects

	PUBLIC WORK Minutes march 13 2024
	2023 Annual MS4 Report
	2023 MS4 Stormwater Annual Report

